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1 EXAMINER JONES: Let's c a l l the f i r s t case of t h e 

2 day, Case No. 14709, a p p l i c a t i o n of New Mexico O i l Conservation 

3 D i v i s i o n f o r a Compliance Order against AmeriCo Energy 

4 Resources, LLC. C a l l f o r appearances. 

5 MR. SWAZO: Sonny Swazo on behal f of the a p p l i c a n t , 

6 O i l Conservation D i v i s i o n . 

7 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Ocean Munds-Dry here on behalf o f the 

8 respondent, AmeriCo Resources -- Energy Resources -- and I've 

9 got t o f i g u r e out where I'm going t o be here. 

10 EXAMINER JONES: Any other appearances? And how many 

11 witnesses do you have? 

12 MR. SWAZO: We're c a l l i n g two witnesses, Mr. Hearing 

13 Examiner. Our f i r s t witness i s Daniel Sanchez and our second 

14 witness i s Gerry Guye. 

15 EXAMINER JONES: Okay. Can we please swear a l l t h e 

16 witnesses t h a t w i l l t e s t i f y i n t h i s case? 

17 [Two witnesses were sworn.] 

18 MR. SWAZO: May I proceed, Mr. Hearing Examiner? 

19 Gerry Guye has t o be sworn i n and I'm not sure e x a c t l y how i t 
20 works or i f t h a t --

21 MR. BROOKS: Normally Steve used t o t e l l the witness 

22 who was on the telephone t o stand up wherever he was. I don't 

23 know t h a t there's any s a n c t i t y t o standing, but would you 

24 please -- j u s t t o avoid ambiguity -- please address the witness 

25 on the telephone and a d m i n i s t r a t o r the oath? 
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1 EXAMINER JONES: Gerry Guye, are you on the phone? 

2 Can you hear okay? Can you s t a t e your name f o r the record? 

3 THE WITNESS: My name i s Gerry Guye. 

4 [The witness was sworn.] 

5 MR. SWAZO: Mr. Hearing Examiner, i n t h i s case, we 

6 are seeking a compliance order against AmeriCo. We're a s k i n g 

7 you t o issue an order r e q u i r i n g them t o submit a re m e d i a t i o n 

8 plan and t o remediate the two s i t e s i n accord w i t h OCD r u l e s . 

9 My understanding i s t h a t they submitted a remediation plan on 

10 the 19th of t h i s month. 

11 We have t r i e d since l a s t summer t o t r y t o get AmeriCo 

12 t o remediate the s i t e s i n accordance w i t h OCD Rule 116 and OCD 

13 g u i d e l i n e s , but we have received no response or got the 

14 runaround. Like I sa i d , we're asking f o r an order r e q u i r i n g 

15 the operator t o remediate the produced water and o i l s p i l l s a t 

16 both these w e l l s i n accordance w i t h OCD r u l e s and g u i d e l i n e s by 

17 a date c e r t a i n . 

18 We're also asking you t o f i n e the operator -- t h a t 

19 the operator knowingly and w i l l f u l l y v i o l a t e d Rule 116 as t o 

20 both w e l l s . And we're also asking you t o assess c i v i l 

21 p e n a l t i e s against the operator f o r the v i o l a t i o n s . And w i t h 

22 t h a t , I ' d l i k e t o begin my case. 

23 EXAMINER JONES: Okay. Any pre-case statements? 

24 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Mr. Examiner, I t h i n k y o u ' l l see t h a t 

25 the testimony w i l l show today, from Mr. N o s r a t i , t h a t they are 
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1 addressing i t . As Mr. Swazo s t a t e d , they've submitted t h e i r 

2 remediation plan. This was a mistake, something t h a t was human 

3 e r r o r . And I t h i n k a l l we're asking f o r today i s we understand 

4 t h a t t h i s was a mistake, and we c e r t a i n l y do not deny t h a t . 

5 But we do not b e l i e v e t h i s i s a circumstance t h a t deserves 

6 p e n a l t y . So we hope t o show you today t h a t t h i s was not a 

7 knowing and w i l l f u l v i o l a t i o n . 

8 DANIEL SANCHEZ 

9 a f t e r having been f i r s t duly sworn under oath, 

10 was questioned and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

11 EXAMINATION 

12 BY MR SWAZO: 

13 Q. Would you please s t a t e your name f o r the record? 

14 A. Daniel Sanchez. 

15 Q. And Mr. Sanchez, w i t h whom are you employed? 

16 A. The O i l Conservation D i v i s i o n . 

17 Q- And what i s your t i t l e ? 

18 A. Compliance and Enforcement Manager. 

19 Q. And could you please e x p l a i n your job duties? 

20 A. I manage the fo u r d i s t r i c t o f f i c e s , the 

21 environmental bureau, and I oversee a l l the compliance and 

22 enforcement programs w i t h i n the D i v i s i o n . 

23 Q. And as p a r t of your d u t i e s , have you reviewed the 

24 OCD records and the OCD w e l l f i l e s f o r the East Shugart U n i t 

25 No. 15 and the East Shugart No. 42? 
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1 A. Yes, I have. 

2 Q. Would you please t u r n t o E x h i b i t No. 2? Would 

3 you please i d e n t i f y t h a t e x h i b i t ? 

4 A. This one? 

5 Q. Yes. Please i d e n t i f y t h a t e x h i b i t . 

6 A. This i s the w e l l l i s t f o r AmeriCo Energy 

7 Resources. 

8 Q. Now, does i t show AmeriCo as the operator of 

9 record f o r these two wells? 

10 A. Yes, i t does. 

11 Q. And i f you would t u r n t o E x h i b i t No. 3. Would 

12 you please i d e n t i f y t h a t e x h i b i t ? 

13 A. Number 3 i s a copy of Rule 116, Release 

14 N o t i f i c a t i o n and C o r r e c t i o n A c t i o n . 

15 Q. And what does t h a t r u l e g e n e r a l l y require? 

16 A. I t re q u i r e s an operator t o n o t i f y the OCD 

17 whenever there's a release and also take c o r r e c t i v e a c t i o n per 

18 OCD g u i d e l i n e s . 

19 Q. And have OCD inspectors inspected these w e l l s ? 

2 0 A. Yes, they have. 

21 Q. Are such inspections documented? 

22 A. Yes. 

23 Q. Does OCD keep records of the inspections? 

2 4 A. Yes, we do. 

25 Q. Are the records made i n the normal course of 
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1 business? 

2 A. Yes. 

3 Q. And was a record made and kept of OCD i n s p e c t i o n 

4 of these w e l l s i n t h i s case? 

5 A. Yes. 

6 Q. Would you please i d e n t i f y E x h i b i t No. 4? 

7 A. Number 4 i s the w e l l i n s p e c t i o n h i s t o r y f o r t h e 

8 East Shugart No. 15. 

9 Q. And does i t — w i t h regard t o t h a t i n s p e c t i o n 

10 h i s t o r y , i s there any i n d i c a t i o n -- are there any -- i s t h e r e 

11 any mention concerning an o i l f i e l d release? 

12 A. Yes. On an i n s p e c t i o n on June 25th of 2007, 

13 there was a c a l l i n t h a t the "Operator n o t i f i e d OCD of 

14 approximately 250 b a r r e l s of i n j e c t i o n water due t o p a r t i n g of 

15 the i n j e c t i o n l i n e . " 

16 Q. And i f you would t u r n t o E x h i b i t No. 5; would you 

17 please i d e n t i f y t h a t e x h i b i t ? 

18 A. Number 5 i s the w e l l i n s p e c t i o n h i s t o r y f o r the 

19 East Shugart Unit No. 42. 

20 Q. Same question: Does the i n s p e c t i o n h i s t o r y 

21 i n d i c a t e anything w i t h regard t o a release of o i l or a 

22 release -- o i l f i e l d release? 

23 A. Looks l i k e yes, there was a release i n November. 

24 We have a request f o r a remediation plan t h a t was sent back i n 

25 October. And I b e l i e v e t h i s was a f i n a l request made t o 
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AmeriCo t o submit a release -- or a remediation plan f o r a 

2 previous release. 

3 Q. And i s there an e n t r y t h a t appears a f t e r t h a t 

4 November entry? 

5 A. There's one f o r January 3rd of 2008 and was a 

6 follow-up i n s p e c t i o n t h a t shows t h a t the " S p i l l appears t o have 

7 been covered w i t h sand," i s the notes. 

8 Q. Would you i d e n t i f y -- would you t u r n t o 

9 E x h i b i t No. 9 and please i d e n t i f y t h a t e x h i b i t ? 

10 A. E x h i b i t No. 9 i s a Notice of V i o l a t i o n t h a t was 

11 issued on November 13th, 2007, regarding the East Shugart 

12 No. 15. 

13 Q. And who issued t h a t ? 

14 A. I d i d . 

15 Q. And who was i t issued to? 

16 A. To AmeriCo Energy Resources. 

17 Q. And you said t h a t i t was f o r the East Shugart 

18 No. 15? 

19 A. Yeah. 

20 Q. And t h a t was f o r a v i o l a t i o n of what r u l e , s i r ? 

21 A. 116. 

22 Q. Was AmeriCo r e q u i r e d t o take any a c t i o n w i t h 

23 regard t o t h i s Notice of V i o l a t i o n ? 

24 A. Yes. They were t o submit the remediation p l a n 

25 t h a t was requested from them before. 

_ , . , „ „ 
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1 Q. Were they r e q u i r e d t o contact the D i s t r i c t ? 

2 A. Yes, they were. 

3 Q. Did t h a t happen? 

4 A. No. Well, there were -- excuse me. There were a 

5 number of e-mails passed back and f o r t h . I b e l i e v e t h a t ' s what 

6 Gerry Guye w i l l be t e s t i f y i n g t o . So there was -- there was 

7 word between the two, but --

8 Q. But was there a response — I'm s o r r y t o 

9 i n t e r r u p t you. But was there a response t o t h i s Notice of 

10 V i o l a t i o n ? 

11 A. No. 

12 MR. SWAZO: Mr. Hearing Examiner, what I would l i k e 

13 t o do a t t h i s p o i n t i s I ' d l i k e t o go ahead and pass the 

14 witness and c a l l him back up a f t e r I've c a l l e d Mr. Guye j u s t t o 

15 e x p l a i n what we're requesting i n t h i s case. 

16 EXAMINER JONES: Ms. Munds-Dry? 

17 MS. MUNDS-DRY: No questions. 

18 EXAMINER JONES: Okay. Do you have any questions? 

19 MR. BROOKS: Not at t h i s time. 

2 0 MR. SWAZO: I t h i n k Mr. Guye's going t o be able t o 

21 hear me from over here. Gerry? 

22 THE WITNESS: Yes. 

23 MR. SWAZO: Can you hear me, Gerry? Are you there? 

24 THE WITNESS: Yes, I am. 

25 
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1 GERRY GUYE 

2 a f t e r having been f i r s t d u l y sworn under oath, 

3 was questioned and t e s t i f i e d t e l e p h o n i c a l l y as f o l l o w s : 

4 EXAMINATION 

5 BY MR. SWAZO: 

6 Q. Gerry, would you please s t a t e your name f o r t h e 

7 record? 

8 A. My name i s Gerry Guye. 

9 Q. Mr. Guye, w i t h whom are you employed? 

10 A. With the New Mexico O i l Conservation D i v i s i o n , 

11 D i s t r i c t I I at A r t e s i a . 

12 Q. And was i s your t i t l e ? 

13 A. My t i t l e i s Compliance O f f i c e r . 

14 Q. And could you please e x p l a i n your j o b dut i e s ? 

15 A. Yes, s i r . I perform f i e l d i n s p e c t i o n s and 

16 ma i n t a i n the t r a c k i n g of compliance issues w i t h i n t h i s 

17 d i s t r i c t . 

18 Q. Mr. Guye, would you please t u r n t o E x h i b i t No. 3? 

19 Would you i d e n t i f y t h a t e x h i b i t ? 

20 A. E x h i b i t No. 3 i s Rule 116, which i s the Release 

21 and N o t i f i c a t i o n and Co r r e c t i v e A c t i o n Rule. 

22 Q. And what does t h a t r u l e require? 

23 A. This r u l e lays out the requirements f o r 

24 n o t i f i c a t i o n t o the OCD of any release and what c o r r e c t i v e 

25 a c t i o n must be taken i n order t o remediate t h a t release. 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 
9c2acfa2-3e47-494f-86d4-16408252a097 



1 Q. 
Page 11 

Would you please t u r n t o E x h i b i t No. 6 and 

2 i d e n t i f y t h a t e x h i b i t ? 

3 A. E x h i b i t No. 6 i s a C-141, a Release N o t i f i c a t i o n 

4 and C o r r e c t i v e A c t i o n from AmeriCo Energy Resources on the East 

5 Shugart Unit No. 15. 

6 Q. And what date was t h a t submitted? 

7 A. Ju l y 6, 2007. 

8 Q. And what person submitted t h a t ? 

9 A. Mr. Don Gray. 

10 Q. Now, I n o t i c e t h a t the e x h i b i t , a t the very t o p 

11 i t has "East Shugart Unit No. 16," and the 16 i s crossed o u t . 

12 Is t h i s f o r the 15 or the 16? 

13 A. This i s f o r the 15 — 

14 Q. And do you know — 

15 A. -- I sent a l e t t e r out t o Mr. Gray e x p l a i n i n g 

16 what actions he needed t o take, and he c a l l e d me on the phone 

17 and informed me t h a t the C-141 was i n e r r o r , t h a t i t should 

18 have been f o r the lease number 15 i n s t e a d of the 16, and t h a t ' s 

19 where I made the c o r r e c t i o n s . 

20 Q. Okay. So you a c t u a l l y crossed out the 16 and put 

21 i n the 15? 

22 A. Yes, I d i d . 

23 Q. And what's the purpose of a C-141 form, s i r ? 

24 A. The C-141 form i s t o n o t i f y the OCD t h a t a s p i l l 

25 has occurred and what actions have been taken i n order t o 

inj i. . I I IJ i I I i MI i n 11 i n j i I I II. 
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1 c o n t a i n i t . 

2 Q. I f an operator was t o f i l e a C-141, does t h a t 

3 take care of the issue? 

4 A. No, i t does not. Upon r e c e i p t of the C-141, I 

5 send a l e t t e r out, which i s E x h i b i t No. 7, e x p l a i n i n g what the 

6 operator needs t o do i n order t o solve the problem. 

7 Q. And so l e t ' s go t o E x h i b i t No. 7. You sa i d 

8 t h a t ' s the l e t t e r t h a t you had sent out. What date d i d you 

9 send t h a t out? 

10 A. 5/13/2007. 

11 Q. And who d i d you send i t to? 

12 A. AmeriCo Energy, a t t e n t i o n Mr. Don Gray. 

13 Q. What does the l e t t e r state? 

14 A. The l e t t e r n o t i f i e s him t h a t i t i s h i s 

15 r e s p o n s i b i l i t y as the responsible person t o prepare a 

16 c o r r e c t i v e a c t i o n plan t o be approved by the D i v i s i o n p r i o r t o 

17 any remediation of the s i t e . I t informs him of what a c t i o n s 

18 must be taken i n order t o formulate t h i s work plan and when the 

19 work plan i s due t o the OCD. 

20 Q. Did you request any ki n d of a c t i o n i n t h i s 

21 l e t t e r ? 

22 A. Only i n t h i s l e t t e r . I t ' s j u s t t o prepare the 

23 work plan and submit i t f o r approval t o the OCD. 

24 Q. Was there a deadline when the operator had t o 

25 r e p l y t o t h i s l e t t e r or r e p l y t o the OCD? 
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1 A. That's c o r r e c t . He had 30 days, or August 1 3 t h , 

2 2007, i n order t o r e p l y . 

3 Q. Did the operator respond w i t h i n t h a t time p e r i o d ? 

4 H e l l o , Gerry? 

5 A. Yes? 

6 Q. Did the operator respond w i t h i n t h a t time p e r i o d ? 

7 A. No, he d i d not. 

8 Q. And I n o t i c e t h a t the l a s t l i n e i t says, " I f I 

9 may be of f u r t h e r s e rvice or i f you have any questions, please 

10 f e e l f r e e t o contact me." 

11 Did they contact you by t h a t time period? 

12 A. No, they d i d not. 

13 Q. Would you please t u r n t o E x h i b i t No. 8 and 

14 i d e n t i f y t h a t ? 

15 A. E x h i b i t No. 8 was my e-mail t o Mr. Gray a f t e r 

16 having received no contact w i t h him by the deadline of August 

17 13th. August 20th I sent an e-mail t o him and forwarded a copy 

18 of the C-141 and the Request f o r Remediation Plan and asked him 

19 t o r e t u r n the work plan t o us by August 24th, 2007. 

20 Q. And what happened a f t e r t h a t ? 

21 A. On the same -- on August 21st, he or — I mean on 

22 August 20th, he r e p l i e d t o me t h a t he had got the C-141 as the 

23 attachment t o my e-mail but he couldn't f i n d the l e t t e r t h a t . 

24 was attached t o i t . I then e-mailed him back t h a t t here were 

25 two pages t o the attachment. He needed t o t u r n the page t o the 
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1 second page. On August the 21st he n o t i f i e d me t h a t he had 

: 2 found the second page and he would l e t us know when a c t i o n was 

3 being taken. 

4 Q. And could you c l a r i f y the two attachments t h a t 

5 you sent? 

6 A. I'm s o r r y . I d i d n ' t hear you. 

7 Q. Could you please c l a r i f y the two attachments t h a t 

8 you sent Mr. Gray? 

9 A. The two attachments were the C-141 o r i g i n a l l y 

10 sent by AmeriCo and a copy of my l e t t e r dated J u l y 13th, which 

11 i s E x h i b i t No. 7. Those were the two documents I attached as 

12 an attachment t o my e-mail. 

13 Q. Now, on your September 10th e-mail t o Mr. Gray, 

14 you i n d i c a t e d t h a t you were asking f o r a remediation plan by 

15 September 24th, 2007. Did t h a t happen? 

16 A. No. 

17 Q. Would you please t u r n t o E x h i b i t No. 10 and 

18 i d e n t i f y t h a t e x h i b i t ? 

19 A. E x h i b i t No. 10 i s a Release N o t i f i c a t i o n and 

20 C o r r e c t i v e A c t i o n C-141 submitted by AmeriCo Energy on the East 

21 Shugart Unit Well No. 42 signed by Mr. Gray. 

22 Q. And what date was t h a t submitted? 

23 A. This was submitted on August 10th, 2007. 

24 Q. Would you please i d e n t i f y E x h i b i t No. 11? 

25 A. E x h i b i t No. 11 i s my l e t t e r t o AmeriCo Energy as 
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1 a r e s u l t of t h a t C-141, requesting the copy of the work p l a n t o 

2 be submitted by September 2 0th. 

3 Q. And t o whom was i t d i r e c t e d to? 

4 A. This l e t t e r was d i r e c t e d t o Oscar N o s r a t i . 

5 Q. And you said t h a t t h a t was f o r the East Shugart 

6 Unit No. 42? 

7 A. Correct. 

8 Q. Did you receive what you requested by the 

9 September 20th deadline? 

10 A. No, I d i d not. 

11 Q. Would you please i d e n t i f y E x h i b i t No. 12? 

12 A. E x h i b i t No. 12 was an e-mail from me t o Mr. Don 

13 Gray on October the 18th requesting t h a t the remediation p l a n 

14 t h a t I had requested p r e v i o u s l y be sent t o us and g i v i n g him a 

15 suspension date of October 25th, 2007. 

16 Q. Did he submit a remediation plan by t h a t date? 

17 A. No, he d i d not. He r e p l i e d t o me again t h a t he 

18 could not f i n d the second page t o h i s attachment. I e-mailed 

19 him back and t o l d him i t was again on page two of the 

2 0 attachment. 

21 He e-mailed back the same day, s a i d he had found i t . 

22 I t looked l i k e he needed to f i l e a f i n a l r e p o r t g i v i n g what 

23 c o r r e c t i o n s were taken t o remediate the land, et c e t e r a . 

24 I e-mailed him back on the same day t h a t he also 

25 needed t o in c l u d e the a n a l y t i c a l data and the sampling t h a t he 
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1 had performed w i t h t h a t c o r r e c t i v e a c t i o n r e p o r t he was 

2 planning on sending me. 

3 Q. Did you get t h a t remediation plan? 

4 A. Yes. 

5 Q. On what date d i d you receive the remediation 

6 plan? 

7 A. I gave him the date t h a t i t was supposed t o have 

8 been submitted was October 25th on t h i s e-mail. 

9 Q. Okay. Did he submit the remediation plan by t h a t 

10 date? 

11 A. He d i d not. 

12 Q. What date on what date d i d you receive t h a t 

13 remediation plan? 

14 A. We received the remediation plan both on the U n i t 

15 No. 15 and the 42 day before yesterday, on February 19th, 2008. 

16 Q. Would you please i d e n t i f y E x h i b i t No. 13? 

17 A. E x h i b i t No. 13 was a l e t t e r of v i o l a t i o n 

18 submitted by me t o AmeriCo, having not received any answer t o 

19 my e-mails or a work plan by October the 25th. I then v i o l a t e d 

2 0 the company f o r f a i l u r e t o submit on 19 November '07, and gave 

21 them u n t i l November 26th of '07 t o forward t h a t work plan t o 

22 me. 

23 Q. Did you receive t h a t remediation plan by 

2 4 November 2 6th? 

25 A. No. 
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1 Q. And would you please i d e n t i f y E x h i b i t No. 14? 

2 A. E x h i b i t No. 14 i s an e-mail from Don Gray t o me 

3 a f t e r , I assume, having received the l e t t e r of v i o l a t i o n . He 

4 sent me t h i s e-mail on November the 26th, t h a t he thought t h a t 

5 the C-141 plan had already been f i l e d and j u s t needed t o be 

6 implemented. I n t h a t case — " i s t h a t the case? Or does 

7 another C-141 s t i l l need t o be f i l e d ? " 

8 I e-mailed him back on the same day t r y i n g t o e x p l a i n 

9 t o him the message t h a t I had sent on October the 18th was 

10 attached. I s a i d , "Your r e p l y i s the second attachment t o t h i s 

11 e-mail. This o f f i c e must approve the remediation plan f o r t h i s 

12 and a l l s p i l l s p r i o r t o the a c t u a l remediation. I n order t o do 

13 t h i s , we must know the extent of the contamination, both 

14 h o r i z o n t a l l y and v e r t i c a l l y . This i s done through sampling, 

15 and the r e s u l t s of t h i s sampling must be sent t o the OCD p r i o r 

16 t o a c t u a l remediation. 

17 " A l l of t h i s i n f o r m a t i o n and procedures are contained 

18 i n the Guidelines f o r Releases and S p i l l s , which i s l o c a t e d on 

19 our web page at the address l i s t e d i n page two of the f i r s t 

2 0 attachment." 

21 He e-mailed me back thanking me f o r the r e p l y , and 

22 i n d i c a t e d t h a t the C-141 t h a t I had attached t o h i s e-mail was 

23 approved. Although the approved C-141 does not address t h i s , 

24 he s a i d he planned on having a t h i r d p a r t y take samples and 

25 submit them along w i t h post-remediation samples w i t h the f i n a l 

" '. 
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1 C-141, assuming t h a t the post-remediation samples are 

2 acceptable. 

3 I sent a l e t t e r back t o — or an e-mail back t o 

4 him — on the same day t r y i n g t o e x p l a i n f u r t h e r what i t was I 

5 needed from him. "The C-141 i n i t i a l i s only a n o t i f i c a t i o n t o 

6 us t h a t you have had a s p i l l and what you d i d t o contain i t . 

7 Now I need a work plan about a n a l y t i c a l data t e l l i n g me t h e 

8 h o r i z o n t a l and v e r t i c a l l i m i t s of the s p i l l and what you are 

9 going t o do t o remediate i t . " That was sent on November 2 6 t h , 

10 2007. 

11 Q. I s a C-141 the same as a remediation plan? 

12 H e l l o , Gerry? 

13 A. Yes? 

14 Q. I s the C-141 the same as a remediation plan? 

15 A. No, i t i s not. 

16 Q. I s the remediation p l a n also known as a work 

17 plan? 

18 A. Yes, i t i s . 

19 Q. And what's the purpose of a remediation plan? 

20 A. The remediation plan i s t o n o t i f y the OCD of the 

21 e x t e n t of the s p i l l through sampling of both the h o r i z o n t a l 

22 area covered and the v e r t i c a l area covered so t h a t we may make 

23 a de t e r m i n a t i o n as t o what i s necessary t o remediate the s p i l l . 

24 The work plan, once approved, then can be implemented by the 

25 company and they can take a c t i o n , then, t o remediate the s p i l l . 
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1 A f t e r t h a t remediation i s done, then they are 

2 r e q u i r e d t o resample t o make sure t h a t a l l l e v e l s of the j 

3 contamination are under the a c t u a l l e v e l s r e q u i r e d by the OCD. 1 
4 And at t h a t p o i n t , they may submit a f i n a l r e p o r t with, t hose 

5 a n a l y t i c a l s t o us f o r f i n a l approval. 

6 Q. So Gerry — Mr. Guye -- i n t h i s case, what does 

7 AmeriCo need t o do w i t h respect t o these two wells? 

8 A. Right now t h e i r work plans are pending. The OCD 

9 i s now c u r r e n t l y reviewing those two work plans t o see i f t h e y 

10 are s u f f i c i e n t . I f they are not s u f f i c i e n t , AmeriCo w i l l be 

11 n o t i f i e d what actions they need t o take t o get us i n f o r m a t i o n 

12 so t h a t we may make a dete r m i n a t i o n on the work plan. I f t h e 

13 work plan i s approved, a l l they are r e q u i r e d t o do i s t o 

14 complete the a c t i o n s required i n the work p l a n , reassess t h e 

15 area, and then submit a f i n a l r e p o r t . 

16 Q. And do you have an idea as f a r as what you would 

17 consider a reasonable amount of time f o r the remediation t o be 

18 completed a t each w e l l s i t e ? 

19 A. I f the work plan i s approved as submitted, i t 

20 shouldn't take over 30 days t o complete the work and submit the 

21 f i n a l r e p o r t . 

22 Q. And i f i t i s not approved as submitted? 

23 A. I f i t ' s not approved as submitted, f u r t h e r 

24 n e g o t i a t i o n s w i t h the company may be r e q u i r e d . I would imagine 

25 i t would probably take up t o 60 days i n order t o complete the 
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1 remediation. 

2 Q. Gerry, i s there anything else t h a t you would l i k e 

3 t o say w i t h regard t o t h i s case? 

4 A. Not r e a l l y . 

5 Q. That concludes my questions f o r you. Opposing 

6 counsel and/or the hearing examiner may have some questions f o r 

7 you. 

8 A. A l l r i g h t . 

9 MS. MUNDS-DRY: I have no questions of Mr. Guye. 

10 EXAMINATION 

11 BY EXAMINER JONES: 

12 Q. Gerry, can you hear me? 

13 A. Just b a r e l y . 

14 Q. Okay. I ' l l t a l k a l i t t l e louder. Well No. 42, 

15 what was the s p i l l on t h a t one? 

16 A. Let me see here. 

17 Q. That was an i n j e c t i o n w e l l a l s o , r i g h t ? 

18 A. As f a r as I can t h i n k r i g h t now, yes, i t i s an 

19 i n j e c t i o n w e l l . The Unit No. 42 was a 100-barrel s p i l l of 

20 produced s a l t w a t e r w i t h a s l i g h t o i l c u t . And they i n d i c a t e d 

21 t h a t a r e l i e f valve had blown and allowed the pr o d u c t i o n water 

22 and o i l t o escape. 

23 Q. How d i d you f i n d t h a t out about the r e l i e f valve? 

24 A. They i n d i c a t e d t h a t on the C-141 t h a t they 

25 submitted on August the 10th, 2007. 
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1 Q. So AmeriCo d i d come t o OCD and show t h a t b o t h of 

2 these i n c i d e n t s happened; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

3 A. Yes, they d i d . 

4 Q. So i t was j u s t a case of not meeting a 

5 deadline -- of your deadline? 

6 A. The case i s not remediating the s p i l l i t s e l f . As 

7 f a r as we know r i g h t now, there has been no remediation of 

8 e i t h e r s p i l l i n over a year, which allows the contamination t o 

9 c o n t i n u a l l y move downward towards groundwater, i f there i s any 

10 i n t h a t area. 

11 Q. Where i s t h i s area? 

12 A. This i s the East Shugart f i e l d j u s t east of t h e 

13 Shugart Road, County Road 222. • I t ' s east of Loco H i l l s r o u g h l y 

14 7 t o 10 m i l e s . 

15 Q. I s i t on the cap rock? 

16 A. No. No, i t ' s not. 

17 Q. How d i d you estimate the 60 days t o remediate one 

18 of those s i t e s ? I f o r g e t whether you s a i d 60 days or 90 days, 

19 but i s t h a t j u s t an --

20 A. This company has h i r e d a t h i r d p a r t y . Once t h e 

21 approval i s granted t o t h a t t h i r d p a r t y , they w i l l go i n and 

22 move r a t h e r q u i c k l y t o get the remediation done. There w i l l be 

23 a c e r t a i n amount of excavation t h a t needs t o be done. Once 
24 t h a t excavation i s done, a l l they need t o do i s resample, which 

25 normally takes j u s t a day or two, and get those samples read, 

I 
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1 which i s the problem w i t h the whole system. We are p u t t i n g an 

2 overload now on these l a b o r a t o r i e s now doing the sampling. And 

3 i t takes them normally one t o two weeks i n order t o get those 

4 r e s u l t s back — a n a l y t i c a l data back t o the company t h a t ' s 

5 doing the excavation. 

6 EXAMINER JONES: Okay. I don't have any more 

7 questions. Thanks, Gerry. 

8 MR. BROOKS: No questions. 

9 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Mr. Jones, I do a c t u a l l y have one 

10 question of Mr. Guye. 

11 EXAMINATION 

12 BY MS. MUNDS-DRY: 

13 Q. Mr. Guye, can you hear me? 

14 A. Yes, ma'am. You're going t o have t o speak a 

15 l i t t l e louder. There's some i n t e r f e r e n c e on the l i n e . 

16 Q. Can you hear me b e t t e r now? 

17 A. Yeah, I can. 

18 Q. I ' l l t r y not t o shout everyone down i n t h i s room. 

19 Mr. Guye you i n d i c a t e d t h a t -- on these two s p i l l s -- t h a t i t 

20 had about been over a year. I was under the assumption t h a t 

21 the s p i l l s as reported i n the C-141s were not q u i t e a year ago. 

22 I want t o make sure I have dates c o r r e c t . 

23 A. Okay. That may have been mis-claim on my p a r t . 

24 The a c t u a l s p i l l s were i n summer of 2007, so a c t u a l l y i t hasn't 

25 been q u i t e a year y e t . 
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1 Q. Thank you. I j u s t wanted t o make sure I 

2 understood t h a t c o r r e c t l y . That's a l l I have. 

3 EXAMINER JONES: Any more witnesses f o r the 

4 ap p l i c a n t ? 

5 MR. SWAZO: I ' d l i k e t o continue my examination, or 

6 f i n i s h my examination, of Mr. Sanchez. 

7 FURTHER EXAMINATION 

8 BY MR. SWAZO: 

9 Q. Mr. Sanchez, what e x a c t l y are you asking f o r i n 

10 t h i s case? 

11 A. For one, we're asking t h a t , as i n d i c a t e d by 

12 Mr. Guye, t h a t the remediation of these two s i t e s take place 

13 e i t h e r w i t h i n 30 days a f t e r approval o f the remediation p l a n by 

14 the d i s t r i c t or 60 days a f t e r t h a t , i f a d d i t i o n a l i n f o r m a t i o n 

15 i s r e q u i r e d from the company. 

16 We're also requesting or recommending p e n a l t i e s i n 

17 the amount of $11,000, $5,000 of i t from the Shugart No. 42. 

18 The dates t h a t were given t o comply were going back t o 

19 September 20th. And t h a t was, you know — other n o t i c e s were 

20 given even a f t e r t h a t time, but we decided t o go and hold o f f 

21 on the 20th as being the l a s t date of n o t i f i c a t i o n moving 

22 forward, and t h a t ' s f i v e months. 

23 The No. 5, they a c t u a l l y had t h i s i n f o r m a t i o n due 

24 back on August 13th. And t o date, up t o the 19th, when those 

25 plans were a c t u a l l y submitted was s i x months. That would be 
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$6,000, a t o t a l of $1,000 per month, f o r a t o t a l of $11,000. 

2 Q. You sai d the No. 5, you mean the No. 15? 

3 A. Yeah, the No. 15. I'm s o r r y . 

4 Q. And i f I understand you c o r r e c t l y , the p e n a l t y i s 

5 based on $1,000 per month since the date of the deadlines t h a t 

6 they were given i n those two res p e c t i v e l e t t e r s ? 

7 

8 

A. Yes. 

Q. I s there anything else t h a t you would l i k e t o add 

9 about t h i s case? 

10 A. No. Not at t h i s time. 

11 MR. SWAZO: And w i t h t h a t , Mr. Hearing Examiner, I 

12 have no other questions f o r t h i s witness. 

13 EXAMINER JONES: Ms. Munds-Dry, any questions f o r 

14 t h i s witness? 

15 MS. MUNDS-DRY: I have no questions f o r Mr. Sanchez. 

16 FURTHER EXAMINATION 

17 BY EXAMINER JONES: 

18 Q. Mr. Sanchez, can you please -- those dates t h a t 

19 you mentioned, the 30 days. There's a plan already i n OCD's 

20 o f f i c e now, r i g h t ? 

21 A. Yes. 

22 Q. Pending approval by OCD; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

23 A. Yes. 

24 Q. For both of these wells? 

25 A. Yes. 
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So t e l l me again the dates? 

2 A. 30 days from the date of approval by the OCD 

3 o f f i c e , d i s t r i c t o f f i c e i n A r t e s i a . I f the d i s t r i c t o f f i c e 

4 requires more i n f o r m a t i o n from the company, then I would say 

5 another 60 days. 

6 Q. Okay. That 30 days i s the date t o get s t a r t e d t o 

7 cleaning up; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

8 A. To get s t a r t e d and t o complete the cleanup. 

9 Q. But — 

10 A. I b e l i e v e t h a t ' s what Mr. Guye was t a l k i n g about 

11 t h e r e . 

12 Ci­ And he s a i d i t would take 60 days t o clean one of 

13 thern up. So 30 days t o get s t a r t e d on i t ? 

14 A. Okay. Well, 30 days t o get s t a r t e d , 60 days t o 

15 complete the cleanup. 

16 Q- But there -- should there be a problem g e t t i n g 

17 s t a r t e d w i t h i n 30 days a f t e r t h a t ? I s there c o n t r a c t o r 

18 problems ? 

19 A. That I have no idea. You'd have t o ask the 

20 company. 

21 Q- Okay. 

22 A. We'll be w i l l i n g t o work w i t h them on a time 

23 frame i f t h a t i s the case. 

24 EXAMINER JONES: Okay. I n the a p p l i c a t i o n , i t j u s t 

25 sa i d -- I t h i n k i t s a i d -- i t says assessing p e n a l t i e s . I t 
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1 doesn't say how much. And you l e f t the amount out of the 

2 a p p l i c a t i o n because you wanted t o w a i t u n t i l hearing t o see 

3 when we would come t o hearing; i s t h a t why? 

4 MR. SWAZO: That i s c o r r e c t , Mr. Hearing Examiner. 

5 When we f i l e d the a p p l i c a t i o n , o b v iously nothing had been done 

6 at t h a t p o i n t . And so i t was a c o n t i n u i n g v i o l a t i o n and up 

7 u n t i l t h i s p o i n t -- I mean, our c a l c u l a t i o n , our penalty 

8 e s t i m a t i o n , i s based on v i o l a t i o n s up t o t h i s p o i n t . So t h a t ' s 

9 why we d i d not have a set number .in the a p p l i c a t i o n . 

10 EXAMINER JONES: Did the operators t h a t you 

11 u s u a l l y -- do they always know t h a t you u s u a l l y do $1,000 a 

12 month or a year? I s i t a year? 

13 THE WITNESS: I t can be $1,000 per day per v i o l a t i o n . 

14 EXAMINER JONES: And what — i s there a s t a t u t e t h a t 

15 says that ? 

16 MR. SWAZO: There i s a s t a t u t e , yes. I b e l i e v e i t 

17 was c i t e d i n the a p p l i c a t i o n . 

18 EXAMINER JONES: Okay. 

19 MR. SWAZO: There i s s t a t u t o r y a u t h o r i t y . The way 

20 t h a t the amount i s c a l c u l a t e d depends on the circumstances of 

21 each p a r t i c u l a r case. Sometimes the circumstances or f a c t s of 

22 the case are a l i t t l e b i t more egregious than others, so the 

23 c a l c u l a t i o n amount would vary. Sometimes i t may be on a 

24 monthly basis. Sometimes i t may be on weekly basis. Sometimes 

25 i t may be on a yea r l y b asis. So i t v a r i e s . 
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1 EXAMINER JONES: The only reason I was asking t h a t i s 

2 i n order f o r the respondents t o know what they're up a g a i n s t 

3 here, they d i d n ' t see i t i n the a p p l i c a t i o n , you know -- so 

4 okay — t h a t ' s --

5 THE WITNESS: I f I may? 

6 EXAMINER JONES: Go ahead. 

7 THE WITNESS: I n the Notice of V i o l a t i o n t h a t went 

8 out i n November, there was a pen a l t y amount of $1,000. I n t h a t 

9 Notice of V i o l a t i o n i t also l e t s them know t h a t i f i t i s n ' t 

10 resolved and i t does continue on and i t goes t o hearing t h a t 

11 there maybe a d d i t i o n a l p e n a l t i e s . 

12 EXAMINER JONES: I t says a d d i t i o n a l p e n a l t i e s . 

13 MR. SWAZO: I would also submit, You Honor — or Mr. 

14 Hearing Examiner -- i n our a p p l i c a t i o n we d i d mention t h a t we 

15 were asking f o r assessment of p e n a l t i e s ; so the operator i s on 

16 n o t i c e of the p e n a l t i e s . And I b e l i e v e t h a t I also c i t e d t h e 

17 s t a t u t o r y a u t h o r i t y which provides -- which i n d i c a t e s t h a t 

18 p e n a l t i e s maybe assessed at $1,000 per day per v i o l a t i o n . 

19 EXAMINER JONES: Okay. Do you have any questions? 

20 MR. BROOKS: I don't have any questions, no. 

21 EXAMINER JONES: Any more questions? 

22 MS. MUNDS-DRY: I do have one question, only because 

23 Mr. Sanchez mentioned the $1,000 p e n a l t y . Mr. Sanchez, can 

24 you -- maybe I'm not lo o k i n g at the r i g h t e x h i b i t . Just out of 

25 c u r i o s i t y . 
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1 THE WITNESS: Let me show i t t o you. E x h i b i t 9 

2 d i d n ' t have a page two. I n o t i c e d t h a t , too. I made a copy 

3 f o r myself and I thought t h a t might have been taken care o f 

4 on Page 2 . 

5 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Thank you, great. That's a l l the 

6 questions I have. Thank you. 

7 EXAMINER JONES: Okay. 

8 MR. SWAZO: I have no f u r t h e r questions. 

9 EXAMINER JONES: And t h a t concludes your case? 

10 MR. SWAZO: Yes. And a t t h i s p o i n t , I would l i k e t o 

11 move f o r the admission of the e x h i b i t s . 

12 EXAMINER JONES: Any obj e c t i o n s ? 

13 MS. MUNDS-DRY: No o b j e c t i o n s . 

14 EXAMINER JONES: Okay. E x h i b i t s 1 through 14 w i l l be 

15 admitted i n t o evidence. 

16 MS. MUNDS-DRY: At t h i s time, we would l i k e t o c a l l 

17 Mr. N o s r a t i . 

18 EXAMINER JONES: Okay. Mr. N o s r a t i , you've already 

19 been sworn. 

20 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Do you want him t o s i t here? Or are 

21 you okay r i g h t there? You're c l o s e r t o me. 

22 

23 OSCAR NOSTRATI 

24 a f t e r having been f i r s t d u l y sworn under oath, 

25 was questioned and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 
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EXAMINATION 

2 BY MS. MUNDS-DRY: 

3 Q. Would you please s t a t e your f u l l name f o r t h e 

4 record? 

5 A. My name i s Oscar N o s r a t i . 

6 Q- And by whom are you employed? 

7 A. AmeriCo Energy Resources. 

8 Q. Where do you reside? 

9 A. Houston, Texas. 

10 Q. And where i s the corporate headquarters f o r 

11 AmeriCo? 

12 A. Houston, Texas. 

13 Q. And what do you do f o r AmeriCo? 

14 A. I'm Vice President of Operations. 

15 Q. T e l l me what your areas of r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s are 

16 as v i c e p r e s i d e n t o f op e r a t i o n s . 

17 A. Overseeing the o i l f i e l d o p e r a t i o n s , I guess, 

18 i n c l u d i n g overseeing a l l the pumpers and foremen and any 

19 a c t i v i t y t h a t takes place i n the f i e l d ; b a s i c a l l y r e s p o n s i b l e 

20 f o r a l l of t h a t . 

21 Q. And t e l l me what does or d i d Mr. Gray do f o r 

22 AmeriCo? 

23 A. Mr. Gray had a dual r e s p o n s i b i l i t y . He's our 

24 lan d manager, and a l s o he had a r e s p o n s i b i l i t y t a k i n g care of 

25 the r e g u l a t o r y correspondence and issues. 
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1 Q. And i s he s t i l l the land manager f o r AmeriCo? j 

2 A. No. Mr. Gray i s no longer w i t h AmeriCo Energy; j 

3 although he i s a con s u l t a n t on a very l i m i t e d basis u n t i l o u r j 

4 c u r r e n t employee i s f u l l y on board. 

5 Q. Tell Mr. Jones what happened here after the \ 

6 C-141s f o r both of these w e l l s were submitted and f i l e d w i t h j 

7 the OCD. j 

8 A. I think there was two problems that occurred. \ 

9 One, Mr. Gray having a dual r e s p o n s i b i l i t y : I t looks l i k e he j 

10 wasn't c o n c e n t r a t i n g on r e g u l a t o r y issues as much as he should | 

11 and taking care of problems in a timely manner. \ 

12 Secondly, I t h i n k when we became aware of t h a t , t h e r e j 

13 was an issue or there was a problem t h a t needed t o be taken 

14 care of in the field as indicated in this C-141. We had \ 

15 indicated in there we had a plan to remediate it to take care \ 

16 of problem. He was under the impression that whatever action \ 

17 defined i n the C-141 i s s u f f i c i e n t enough f o r us; j u s t go ahead 

18 and implement the plan. ) 

19 And l a t e r on he came t o me. He sa i d -- I guess 

20 correspondence from Mr. Gerry Guye i n d i c a t e d t h a t was not | 
i 

21 s u f f i c i e n t . We have t o a c t u a l l y get t e s t s taken and i d e n t i f y I 

22 and d e l i n e a t e these s p i l l s h o r i z o n t a l l y and v e r t i c a l l y and ; 

23 submit a plan of action to the OCD and BLM to be approved. : 

2 4 Then we can proceed with the remediation. \ 

25 I think in the past we had spills in there that was ] 
j 
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1 done w i t h the C-141 only. We submitted and t o l d them what we 

2 were going t o do and we went on and d i d i t . I don't know i f 

3 the scope was t h a t much d i f f e r e n t or why we was under t h a t 

4 impression, but when Mr. Guye responded t o him t h a t , "No, i t ' s 

5 not s u f f i c i e n t . You have t o a c t u a l l y take samples and analyze 

6 the sample and d e l i n e a t e i t v e r t i c a l l y and h o r i z o n t a l l y and 

7 submit i t f o r approval before you can remediate i t . " 

8 I t became obvious t h a t he had t o proceed. But i t 

9 seemed l i k e he kind of ignored or f o r g o t or d i d not take care 

10 of the problem i n a t i m e l y manner. 

11 Q. So you j u s t had some employment mistakes. What 

12 happened, do you t h i n k ? Why was there such a long time t o 

13 respond t o the Di v i s i o n ? 

14 A. Well, I t h i n k the only t h i n g t h a t I can t h i n k of 

15 i s j u s t k i n d of f o r g e t about i t . I t h i n k he had, l i k e having 

16 double duty, he probably was more concentrated i n one area than 

17 ot h e r s . Might be t h i s area d i d not get as much a t t e n t i o n as i t 

18 should have. 

19 Q. And has AmeriCo since submitted a remediation 

20 p l a n f o r both of these w e l l s t o the D i v i s i o n ? 

21 A. Yes, ma'am. We have. 

22 Q. What i s what's been marked as AmeriCo Resources 

23 E x h i b i t No. 1? 

24 A. This i s a remediation plan issued f o r Unit No. 

25 15, c a l l e d work plan, which i s -- they show a l l the t e s t data 

i 
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1 and samples and extent of the remediation area and p r e t t y much 

2 e v e r y t h i n g i d e n t i f i e d i n here. And also we have a plan of 

3 a c t i o n , what we t h i n k and recommend t o be done t o remediate 

4 t h i s s i t e . 

5 Q. Who prepared t h i s r e p o rt? 

6 A. This was done by by an environmental company from 

7 Hobbs, New Mexico, Safety and Environmental S o l u t i o n s , I n c . 

8 Q. And I be l i e v e you heard Mr. Guye t e s t i f y t h a t the 

9 plan was submitted on February 19th. Does t h a t sound r i g h t t o 

10 you? 

11 A. Yes, ma'am. That's c o r r e c t . 

12 Q. And I'm next handing you what's been marked as 

13 AmeriCo E x h i b i t No. 2. I s t h a t a s i m i l a r plan f o r the Shugart 

14 U n i t No. 42? 

15 A. Yes, ma'am. That's c o r r e c t . 

16 Q. Was t h a t also prepared by Safety and 

17 Environmental Solutions? 

18 A. Yes, t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

19 Q. And I'm also showing you here what's been marked 

20 as E x h i b i t No. 3 and E x h i b i t No. 4. What are these documents? 

21 A. Okay. E x h i b i t No. 3 i s the approval t h a t we 

22 received f o r t h a t plan t h a t we submitted f o r BLM. And they 

23 have reviewed the plan and they have approved i t as s t a t e d . 

24 That's E x h i b i t No. 3. 

25 Q. Okay. And E x h i b i t No. 4? 
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1 A. And E x h i b i t No. 4 i s the approval from BLM f o r 

2 East Shugart Unit No. 42, t h a t they have received the plan and 

3 reviewed i t and they are approving the plan as s t a t e d . 

4 Q. And I b e l i e v e we heard t h i s morning t h a t Mr. Guye 

5 i s s t i l l reviewing the plan t h a t ' s been submitted f o r a p p r o v a l . 

6 We're s t i l l w a i t i n g on D i v i s i o n approval. 

7 A. Yes. We were hoping t h a t we would probably g e t 

8 i t today, but we haven't been able t o receive an answer. But 

9 they have the plans and they are reviewing them. 

10 Q. Do you have any understanding from Safety and 

11 Environmental S o l u t i o n s -- Mr. Sanchez has proposed a — make 

12 sure I understand t h i s c o r r e c t l y -- 30 days t o s t a r t and 

13 60 days t o complete the remediation on both these w e l l s . Do 

14 you have any understanding i f t h a t ' s a doable time frame? 

15 A. I t h i n k t h a t seems s u f f i c i e n t time. We should be 

16 able t o remediate both s i t e s i n the time frame, b a r r i n g unusual 

17 weather c o n d i t i o n s . Because understand t h i s i s a d i r t road 

18 you're d e a l i n g w i t h . You're dea l i n g w i t h s o i l and so on. I f 

19 they get a heavy r a i n f o r an extended p e r i o d of time i t might 

20 delay. But other than t h a t , we f e e l l i k e we have the 

21 c o n t r a c t o r s and s u f f i c i e n t help t o be able t o complete i t i n 

22 t h a t time p e r i o d . 

23 Q. And w i l l you stay i n communication, though, w i t h 

24 the d i s t r i c t o f f i c e t o make sure t h a t the t i m e l i n e i s met and, 

25 i f there are any problems, t h a t those are communicated t o the 
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1 D i v i s i o n ? 

2 A. Yes, d e f i n i t e l y we w i l l . 

3 Q. Now, t h i s delay and the response t o the D i v i s i o n , 

4 you c e r t a i n l y don't deny t h a t there was a problem w i t h i n 

5 AmeriCo t h a t took place? 

6 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

7 Q. And what has AmeriCo done t o t r y t o remedy t h i s 

8 problem f o r the f u t u r e ? 

9 A. Well, since then we not i c e d t h a t dual 

10 r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s seem l i k e i t ' s r e a l l y not t a k i n g care of the 

11 problem. And we have h i r e d a f u l l - t i m e r e g u l a t o r y a n a l y s t or 

12 r e g u l a t o r y person t h a t takes care of only r e g u l a t o r y issues . 

13 So h o p e f u l l y t h a t w i l l be her only r e s p o n s i b i l i t y and we can 

14 avoid these kinds of problems i n the f u t u r e . And we are i n the 

15 process of h i r i n g a landman, or land manager, t o take care of 

16 our land issues. 

17 Q. When was the r e g u l a t o r y person hired? Do you 

18 r e c a l l ? 

19 A. I t h i n k we h i r e d her, I b e l i e v e , about three 

20 weeks ago. We've been a d v e r t i s i n g and l o o k i n g f o r someone f o r 

21 the l a s t two months and we f i n a l l y found somebody about t h r e e 

22 weeks ago. 

23 Q. And f i n a l l y , Mr. N o s r a t i , t e l l Mr. Jones: Do you 

24 t h i n k t h i s was an instance where i t was a knowing, w i l l f u l 

25 v i o l a t i o n ? Or what do you t h i n k happened here? 
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1 A. I don't t h i n k i t was a w i l l f u l v i o l a t i o n a t a l l . 

2 I t was j u s t , I t h i n k , human e r r o r i n a way t h a t , r e a l l y , t h e 

3 person t h a t was i n charge a t f i r s t , I t h i n k he was probably, ! 

4 having dual r e s p o n s i b i l i t y , r e a l l y might have been overloaded. 

5 And j u s t some of these issues was, r e a l l y , I guess, ignored or j 

6 he j u s t f o r g o t about i t . j 

7 And then when i t became apparent t h a t he needed t o 

8 take care of i t -- or maybe he was under the impression t h a t j 

9 the C-141 i s r e a l l y s u f f i c i e n t , a c t u a l l y , f o r the remediat i o n j 

10 p l a n . We j u s t needed t o go ahead and clean i t up. 

11 But i n no way were we t r y i n g t o avoid the issue o r | 

12 not t o respond t o OCD or not take care of the problem. Our ; 

13 a c t i o n s i n d i c a t e t h a t as soon as i t became apparent t h a t t h e r e ; 

14 was an issue and we immediately responded t o i t then h i r e d an 

15 environmental company. I 

16 And they have been working on i t f o r , I don't know, 

17 the l a s t several weeks. Because t h e r e were several occasions j 

18 t h a t they had t o go and take samples. F i r s t they took samples 

19 w i t h a hand auger and they couldn't penetrate i t deeper. I t j 

20 seemed l i k e a l l the p e n e t r a t i o n was deeper. Then they had t o i 

21 b r i n g machinery and backhoe and so on and d i g i t . So they've | 

22 been working on i t f o r the l a s t s e v e r a l weeks and f i n a l l y got | 

I 
23 e v e r y t h i n g f i n a l i z e d and submitted. | 

! 
24 So I don't t h i n k there's any way t h a t we're t r y i n g t o j 

I 
25 ignore i t or not t o respond t o i t . I t was j u s t human e r r o r and j 

I 
| 

, _ _ _ — l i 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 
9c2acfa2-3e47-494f-86d4-16408252a097 



Page 36 

1 j u s t k i n d of f o r g o t about i t . 

2 Q. Do you request t h a t the p e n a l t i e s not be imposed 

3 a t t h i s time? 

4 A. I would request d e f i n i t e l y f o r not t o assess a 

5 pe n a l t y because I don't t h i n k we were r e a l l y t r y i n g t o --

6 w i l l f u l l y t r y i n g t o do something or ignore the problem. I t was 

7 j u s t human e r r o r . And i t j u s t became apparent t h a t there was a 

8 problem, and we responded and we got i t taken care of. And as 

9 soon as we had the plan approved, we immediately moved t o 

10 remediate the plan and c o r r e c t the problem. 

11 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Thank you. I have nothi n g f u r t h e r 

12 f o r Mr. N o s r a t i . 

13 EXAMINER JONES: Okay. Let's give Mr. Swazo a chance 

14 t o --

15 MR. SWAZO: Yes, I do have some questions. 

16 EXAMINATION 

17 BY MR. SWAZO: 

18 Q. Mr. N o s r a t i , when d i d Mr. Gray leave the company? 

19 A. I'm t r y i n g t o r e c a l l . I t h i n k probably l a t e 

20 December, i f my memory serves me r i g h t . 

21 Q. And up u n t i l t h a t p o i n t , he had been re s p o n s i b l e 

22 f o r the land management and r e g u l a t o r y issues? 

23 A. Yes, s i r . 

24 Q. And w i l l you t u r n t o E x h i b i t No. 11. I t ' s Mr. 

25 Guye's l e t t e r t o AmeriCo and i t ' s t o your a t t e n t i o n . And i t ' s 
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1 dated August 20th, 2007. 

2 A. Yes, s i r . 

3 Q. How come you d i d n ' t respond? 

4 A. Well, Don Gray has been our land manager and 

5 r e g u l a t o r y issues. Whenever we get -- I p r e t t y much see, i f 

6 not 100 percent, probably 80, 90 percent of a l l the 

7 correspondence t h a t comes from the d i f f e r e n t s t a t e s t h a t we 

8 operate i n . But a c t u a l l y the person t h a t makes sure t h a t t h e 

9 problem i s taken care of and do the paperwork and f i l e a l l the 

10 requirements i s the person i n charge, which i n t h i s case was 

11 Don Gray. And whenever I get a n o t i c e t h a t comes i n , I ' l l hand 

12 i t t o Don Gray and i n s t r u c t him t h a t he needs t o take an 

13 a c t i o n . 

14 Q. I s t h a t what you d i d i n t h i s case? 

15 A. Yes, s i r . 

16 Q. What was h i s response when he gave you t h i s — 

17 I'm so r r y . I mean, when you gave him t h i s l e t t e r ? 

18 A. Well, i t was d e f i n i t e l y he sa i d t h a t he w i l l take 

19 care of i t . As a matter of f a c t , when we received the 

20 v i o l a t i o n from you t h a t the problem has not been taken care o f , 

21 I went t o Don and asked him. And he s a i d , "Well I t h i n k I took 

22 care of them." 

23 And then we went on and f i n d the two f i l e s t h a t he 

24 created f o r these w e l l s and i t became apparent t h a t he hadn't. 

25 He j u s t t o l d me he f o r g o t about i t . 
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1 Q. Now, i n your testimony — w e l l , you've t e s t i f i e d 

2 t h a t you be l i e v e t h a t -- I ' l l s o r t of paraphrase i t -- t h a t 

3 Mr. Gray maybe had too much on h i s p l a t e . I don't know i f 

4 t h a t ' s a r i g h t -- i f t h a t ' s a good way t o phrase i t --

5 A. Well, I t h i n k --

6 Q. I'm s o r r y . Go ahead. 

7 A. I t h i n k you're c o r r e c t . I probably mentioned 

8 t h a t he probably had, but I t h i n k i t became apparent t o us 

9 a f t e r a while t h a t r e a l l y , Don Gray, i t d i d n ' t seem l i k e r e a l l y 

10 i t was as much as the volume as h i s w i l l i n g n e s s . Since he was 

11 r e a l l y a land manager, and t h a t t a k i n g issues of land and 

12 r e g u l a t o r y , he d i d n ' t r e a l l y enjoy doing the r e g u l a t o r y work. 

13 So t h a t ' s the reason we f e l t t h a t some of these 

14 issues had been sidestepped and not g e t t i n g the a t t e n t i o n t h a t 

15 they needed. And then t h a t ' s the time t h a t we said i t was time 

16 t o make a change and then we s t a r t a d v e r t i s i n g and t r y i n g t o 

17 get a f u l l - t i m e r e g u l a t o r y agent. 

18 Q. When d i d t h a t become apparent t o you? 

19 A. I guess toward the end of the year. Probably 

20 around the October/November time frame, t h a t we f e l t l i k e , you 

21 know, we got i n some issues t h a t ' s not being met i n a t i m e l y 

22 manner. And we had some other issues w i t h other agencies t h a t 

23 was coming back, he hasn't responded t i m e l y and so on. 

24 And I confronted him. I n each case he had a 

25 d i f f e r e n t reason: "Well, I was going t o take care of i t and 
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1 t h i s issue came out and I haven't. And t h i s one I f e l t l i k e I 

2 responded. I don't know how come they haven't received i t . " 

3 That type of answers from him. 

4 Q. So you s a i d i t became apparent t o you i n October, 

5 slash, November t h a t he probably -- t h a t he had too much on h i s 

6 p l a t e . Did you o f f e r -- d i d AmeriCo o f f e r him any type of 

7 assistance? Did you f o l k s o f f e r him any -- d i d you give him 

8 any employees t o help him w i t h h i s workload? 

9 A. Well, I t h i n k -- i t r e a l l y became more apparent 

10 t h a t i t wasn't h i s workload. I t was h i s w i l l i n g n e s s t o do 

11 r e g u l a t o r y work. I t h i n k he i s d e f i n i t e l y a capable person but 

12 i t seemed l i k e he j u s t r e a l l y wasn't enjoying or l i k i n g d o ing 

13 r e g u l a t o r y work. That's when i t became more apparent t o us. 

14 And d e f i n i t e l y we s t a r t e d l o o k i n g i n t o i t more ourselves. 

15 Yes. We t r i e d t o supplement him w i t h other employees 

16 h e l p i n g him or asking him t h a t i f he has items t h a t he doesn't 

17 have time t o take care of, l e t us know so t h a t we can a s s i s t 

18 him. 

19 Q. So you were aware a t t h a t p o i n t t h a t t here were 

20 outstanding r e g u l a t o r y issues? 

21 A. I d i d n ' t know a l l the issues t h a t were 

22 outstanding. No, s i r . 

23 Q. But you d i d know t h a t there were some issues? 

24 A. Well, i t was apparent t h a t there was some issues 

25 t h a t were not being t a k i n g of. But which ones and i n what 
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1 d e t a i l , no, I wasn't aware o f . 

2 Q. Did you assign any employee t o take care of t h e 

3 r e g u l a t o r y issues? 

4 A. No. I asked Don Gray t h a t i f he has — i f he 

5 needs help, he f e e l s l i k e he's not able t o take care of a l l the 

6 tasks t h a t were being assigned t o him, please l e t me know and I 

7 w i l l supplement him w i t h the help. 

8 Q. Did you give him an employee t o handle the 

9 r e g u l a t o r y issues i n t h i s p a r t i c u l a r case? 

10 A. No. I d i d not assign any p a r t i c u l a r person t o do 

11 the work. But I asked him i f he needs i t , l e t us know. Then 

12 w e ' l l , you know, take some of the work away from him. I f he 

13 t h i n k s t h a t he f e e l s l i k e he doesn't have time t o cake care of 

14 i t . 

15 Q. And the new person t h a t you h i r e d , what's t h a t 

16 person's name? 

17 A. Her name a Kathy D u f f i e l d . 

18 Q. Kathy? 

19 A. Yes, s i r . 

20 MR. SWAZO: I don't have any f u r t h e r questions. 

21 EXAMINER JONES: Okay. Mr. N o s r a t i , I guess I should 

22 ask questions t o educate myself here a l i t t l e b i t . 

23 EXAMINATION 

2 4 BY EXAMINER JONES: 

25 Q. How d i d you f i n d t h i s Safety and Environmental 
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1 Solutions? Are they turnkey environmental cleanup people, or 

2 are they people j u s t i n v e s t i g a t i n g ? 

3 A. I t h i n k they do both. We had — since we operate 

4 other f i e l d s i n New Mexico and Texas, and we've been work i n g 

5 w i t h them f o r the l a s t couple of years or maybe longer. And 

6 f i r s t they do environmental work and they go i n the f i e l d and 

7 analyze, take samples, d e l i n e a t e problems and they come up w i t h 

8 a work p l a n . And then, i t depends on the scope of work. 

9 I f they are not t h a t busy, they do have people t h a t 

10 they work w i t h and they supervise and h i r e subcontractors t o do 

11 the work. So w e ' l l r e a l l y look at i t case by case. I f we f e e l 

12 l i k e they are capable of handling the problem i n a t i m e l y 

13 manner and i n the proper way, then we give them a turnkey j o b . 

14 Or sometimes they j u s t do the environmental work and come up 

15 w i t h a remediation plan. And then a f t e r the plan approval, 

16 w e ' l l take i t from there and implement i t ourselves. 

17 Q. As f a r as a b i g s a l t w a t e r s p i l l or an i n j e c t i o n 

18 l i n e breaking and a s p i l l , how would you clean t h a t up? 

19 A. Well, i n t h i s p a r t i c u l a r case, f o r example, they 

20 are recommending t h a t we go down fo u r f e e t and remove the s o i l . 

21 And th e r e i s some hot spots t h a t c o n c e n t r a t i o n i s higher than 

22 other areas. 

23 So they d e l i n e a t e the hot spots and we haul them o f f 

2 4 t o an approved land disposal area. And then the remaining s o i l 

25 w i l l be blended i n w i t h the o n - s i t e s o i l . And then come w i t h a 
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1 c h l o r i d e content t h a t i s approved or allow a b l e and then p u t i t 

2 back. 

3 And before we put the s o i l back, they put a p l a s t i c 

4 l i n e r i n there so t h a t there won't be any more s a l t pushing 

5 down, f a r t h e r down, i n the ground. And then they put the s o i l 

6 back and then top i t w i t h a top s o i l . And then come back and 

7 reseed i t f o r the r e s t o r a t i o n . 

8 Q. Do you have any idea -- I don't r e a l l y want t o 

9 ask s p e c i f i c s about cost -- but the cost t o clean these up i n 

10 r e l a t i o n t o the f i n e s t h a t they're asking f o r , i s i t an order 

11 of magnitude higher t o clean i t up than these f i n e s would be? 

12 Are we t a l k i n g hundreds and thousands of d o l l a r s here? 

13 A. No. I don't t h i n k i t ' s t h a t h i g h , and probably 

14 $30- t o $40,000 one side. Maybe the other i s l e s s . But t h e 

15 t h i n g i s , t h a t I t h i n k t h a t we're t r y i n g t o show here i s , t h a t 

16 we are a responsible operator. And we're not r e a l l y -- we 

17 d i d n ' t want t o m i t i g a t e our r e s p o n s i b i l i t y . I t was j u s t human 

18 e r r o r . Really he j u s t f o r g o t about i t and d i d not respond i n a 

19 t i m e l y manner. 

2 0 When i t became apparent t h a t we had a problem here, 

21 we immediately jumped on i t and took care of i t and submitted a 

22 plan. And now t h a t plan i s approved. We'll go i n and take 

23 care of i t . And we're hoping t h a t the deadline t h a t i s set 

24 r i g h t now t h a t we can beat t h a t and c o r r e c t i t before t h a t . 

25 And we are also t a k i n g o t her plans i n the f i e l d . 
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1 This Shugart f i e l d -- we acquired t h i s f i e l d about a year and 

2 h a l f ago from M e r i t Energy. And i t looks l i k e the f i e l d has 

3 been k i n d of ignored, has not been maintained p r o p e r l y . There 

4 i s a high-pressure s a l t w a t e r i n j e c t i o n and i t r e a l l y , a c c o r d i n g 

5 t o our study, i t shouldn't be t h a t high. We have an i n j e c t i o n 

6 pressure as high as 1600 or so. We're i n the process of -- we 

7 j u s t f i n a l i z e d our plan because a l o t of the i n j e c t i o n w e l l s 

8 need t o be cleaned up. And i f we clean up i n j e c t i o n w e l l s , 

9 then we can drop the pressure i n the f i e l d . And i n t h a t case 

10 i t helps tremendously minimize the leaks t h a t happen. 

11 Because when you have high pressure and you have a 

12 weak spot i n the l i n e , i t ' s going t o happen. And i t ' s l i k e 

13 most of the time i t happens a t 2:00 o'clock i n the morning when 

14 the pumpers are not i n the f i e l d . When he gets there by 7:00 

15 o'clock, you know, 1600 pounds -- even a small p i n h o l e -- can 

16 put out a couple hundred b a r r e l s of water e a s i l y . 

17 So we're d e f i n i t e l y aware of the problem and we are 

18 i n the process of, as a matter of f a c t , t e s t i n g a procedure i n 

19 a couple of our i n j e c t i o n w e l l s and have dropped the pressure 

20 considerably, down t o 1100 pounds or so. And we're i n the 

21 process of implementing i t i n other i n j e c t i o n w e l l s . 

22 And we have taken, also, steps t o clean up the 

23 i n j e c t i o n system, our s a l t w a t e r i n j e c t i o n tanks and so on. 
24 There was a l o t of i r o n s u l f i d e and d i f f e r e n t types of m a t e r i a l 

25 t h a t accumulated which was i n j e c t i n g the w e l l s , again, c l o g g i n g 
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1 up the p e r f o r a t i o n and b r i n g i n g up the pressure. 

2 So we're l o o k i n g a t the problem as a whole. And I 

3 t h i n k we j u s t need the time, h o p e f u l l y , t o take care of i t . 

4 Because, you know, i t ' s c o s t i n g us a l o t more money. And t h e 

5 o p e r a t i o n i s becoming — i t ' s not making any money f o r us. So 

6 we're i n the process of c o r r e c t i n g the problem i n a more deeper 

7 manner. 

8 Q. Do you have SCADA system out there? Are you 

9 going t o put one in? 

10 A. We have a warning system, alarms. As soon as 

11 there i s a problem t h a t happens, we get an alarm t h a t the 

12 pumper has been n o t i f i e d and there's a sequence t h a t they c a l l . 

13 And so we have a p r o t e c t i o n system i f something happens. Not 

14 a l l the p i p e l i n e s and so on, there's c e r t a i n of i t due t o t h e 

15 tank l e v e l s and the pressure drops and so on. 

16 So we have a warning system t h a t h o p e f u l l y gives us a 

17 warning. And most of the time -- and most of the time we've 

18 been able t o avoid i t . But sometimes i t j u s t seems l i k e i t ' s 

19 not p o s s i b l e . 

20 Q. I hope your plan i s successful i n lowering the 

21 pressure and reducing leaks, but I also hope i t doesn't reduce 

22 the pr o d u c t i o n by doing t h a t , a l s o . 

23 A. No. I t h i n k we're i n a plan of f r a k i n g the w e l l s 

24 and d r i l l i n g more w e l l s . So we p a i d good money f o r t h i s f i e l d 

25 w i t h t h i s p o t e n t i a l and we have good plans f o r i t . And t h a t ' s 
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1 the reason we're spending a l o t of money. 

2 As matter of f a c t , we put i n a brand new manifold. 

3 system. Because t h i s w e l l has — t h i s f i e l d has close t o about 

4 50 w e l l s . And a l l of the w e l l s come t o a ma n i f o l d system t o 

5 give the c a p a b i l i t y t o switch i t t o d i f f e r e n t t e s t o r s and 

6 d i f f e r e n t tanks. 

7 And when we took over, we n o t i c e d i t i s i n bad shape. 

8 And i t ' s o l d and rusted. And t h a t was causing a l o t of l e a k s . 

9 So we went on and spent over a couple of hundred thousand 

10 d o l l a r s t o mediate a l l t h a t and put a brand new ma n i f o l d 

11 system. And we have put brand new t e s t i n g -- t e s t s e parators 

12 and new tanks and so on. 

13 I mean, we are i n the process of r e a l l y r e m e d i a t i n g 

14 the o v e r a l l f i e l d . I t j u s t takes time. And I'm p r e t t y sure 

15 Guye i s probably f a m i l i a r w i t h some of the work t h a t we have. 

16 He can a t t e s t t o t h a t . 

17 Q. Are you s t i l l using a l o t of makeup water? 

18 A. Yes, s i r . We're s t i l l using close t o 1600 

19 b a r r e l s a day makeup water. We're i n the process of c o n v e r t i n g 

20 one of the w e l l s t o makeup water. We've been working on t h a t , 

21 t o o . 

22 EXAMINER JONES: Mr. Brooks, do you have anything? 

23 MR. BROOKS: Nothing. 
24 EXAMINER JONES: Any more questions? 

25 MR. SWAZO: No. No questions, but I ' d l i k e t o 
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1 c l a r i f y something. 

2 EXAMINER JONES: Okay. We're g e t t i n g t o c l o s i n g 

3 statements, i t sounds l i k e . 

4 MS. MUNDS-DRY: I j u s t need t o move f o r the admission 

5 of AmeriCo E x h i b i t s 1 through 4 be received i n t o evidence. 

6 MR. SWAZO: No o b j e c t i o n s . 

7 EXAMINER JONES: E x h i b i t s 1 through 4 w i l l be 

8 admitted. 

9 Okay. Go ahead. 

10 MR. SWAZO: I'm going t o go ahead and pass on c l o s i n g 

11 arguments. I ' l l l e t you f o l k s consider the evidence. 

12 But I j u s t wanted t o ask everyone w i t h regard t o t h i s 

13 Notice of V i o l a t i o n , E x h i b i t No. 9, i t was o r i g i n a l l y a 

14 three-page document. My e x h i b i t o n l y shows two, and I know 

15 t h a t Mr. Sanchez' e x h i b i t -- the witness' e x h i b i t -- also 

16 showed two. 

17 And I j u s t want t o make sure t h a t -- do you f o l k s 

18 have Page No. 2? And one way you would be able t o t e l l i s a t 

19 the very top i t should say "Page 2 of 3." And t h a t would 

20 i n c l u d e the c o u r t r e p o r t e r . 

21 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Mr. Swazo, we seem t o have one and 

22 thr e e , I guess. I guess we don't have two. 

2 3 MR. SWAZO: We're going t o go ahead and make copies 

2 4 and we w i l l p r o v i d e Page No. 2 t o everyone. 

2 5 EXAMINER JONES: Okay. 
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1 MR. SWAZO: I apologize f o r t h a t . I don't have 

2 anything else. 

3 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Nothing f u r t h e r . 

4 EXAMINER JONES: Okay. Thank you very much. 

5 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Thank you. 

6 EXAMINER JONES: We'll take Case 14079 under 

7 advisement. 

8 Let's have a ten-minute break here. 

9 [Hearing concluded.] 
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